
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY 
PANEL (SPECIAL) 

 

WEDNESDAY 4 JANUARY 2006 
7.30 PM  

 
PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 5        

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Burchell 

 
Councillors: 

 
Idaikkadar 
N Shah 
Anne Whitehead (VC) 
 

Marilyn Ashton 
Mrs Bath 
Mrs Kinnear 
 

  

Co-opted Member: Councillor John Branch 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Blann 
2. Bluston 
3. Ray 
4. Miles 
 

1. Kara 
2. Versallion 
3. Harriss 
 

  

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 

Contact:  Kate Boulter, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1269    E-mail:  kate.boulter@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY PANEL (SPECIAL) 
 
WEDNESDAY 4 JANUARY 2006 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that 

the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives 

after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member 
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business 
on the agenda after his/her arrival. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

4. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

5. Draft London Plan Alterations - Housing Provision Targets - Public 
Consultation:  (Pages 1 - 6) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Group Manager (Planning and Development). 
 

6. Draft London Plan Alterations - Planning for Waste; Planning for 
Minerals - Public Consultation:  (Pages 7 - 26) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Group Manager (Planning and Development). 
 

  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   
 



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\8\AI00025896\SPAP0106LondonPlanAltsHsg2012050.doc 

 
 
Meeting:   
 

Strategic Planning Advisory Panel  

Date: 
 

Wednesday 4th January 2006  

Subject: 
 

Draft London Plan Alterations – Housing 
Provision Targets – Public Consultation 
 

 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Group Manager – Planning and 
Development 
 

 

Contact Officer: 
 

Dennis Varcoe – Group Planner  

Portfolio Holder:  
 

Planning, Development and Housing  

Key Decision: 
 

No  

Status: 
 

Public  

 
Section 1: Summary 
The Mayor has invited comments on the Draft Alterations to the London Plan  
Housing Provision Targets, which have been prepared following the completion 
of the 2004 London Housing Capacity Study (“the 2004 Study”). These 
comments are sought by Friday 20 January 2006.The suggested new target for 
Harrow is for 4,000 additional homes to be provided in the ten-year period 2007/8 
to 2016/17. This report outlines the findings of the 2004 Study, including 
comments on the methodology and process of developing the final potential 
capacity figures.  It then refers to the levels of housing development that have 
been achieved in recent years, and anticipated future housing development 
already identified. On the basis of current and projected performance, the 
Council can, in principle, meet the target identified for Harrow and should 
therefore support the target. 
 
Decision Required 
For recommendation to Cabinet that the comments contained in this report be 
submitted to the Mayor as the Council’s response to the Draft London Plan 
Alterations – Housing Provision Targets – Public Consultation, by 20 January 
2006. 
 

Agenda Item 5
Pages 1 to 6

1



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\8\AI00025896\SPAP0106LondonPlanAltsHsg2012050.doc 

 
Reason for report 
 
The Mayor has prepared draft Alterations to London Plan policies on Housing 
provision targets based on the 2004 Study.  As part of the statutory process, the 
draft Alterations are the subject of a 3 month public consultation, which started 
on 17th October. The updated targets eventually included in the London Plan will 
provide the strategic guidance for the development of policies in the Core 
Strategy of the Local Development Framework. The Council would wish to 
respond at this stage. 
 
 
Benefits 
 
The opportunity for the Council to comment will enable the Mayor the opportunity 
to feed these into the Examination In Public to be held on the draft Alterations. 
Targets determined through this process will be statutory, and the Council will 
need to consider these in the preparation of the Local Development Framework.   
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
The cost of updating information on the 2004 Study, which informs the 
Alterations, will be met within the approved Departmental budget. 
 
Risks 
 
Failure to comment would expose the Council to suggestions that it was entirely 
in agreement to the methodology, content and findings of the 2004 Study and all 
aspects of the draft London Plan Alterations on housing provision targets. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
Consideration would need to be given to any further action required to be taken, 
including if this involved representations that would need to be pursued at 
the Examination In Public into the Draft London Plan Alterations. 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
Background 
The London Plan 2004 includes housing provision targets for the twenty-year 
period 1997-2016, of which Harrow’s contribution is at least 6,620 additional 
units.  This figure was subsequently incorporated into the Harrow Unitary 
Development Plan (HUDP), adopted in July 2004. The figures included in the 
Plan were derived from the 1999 London Housing Capacity Study (“the 1999 
Study”). Whilst the London Plan figures were agreed following the Examination in 
Public, it was acknowledged by the Panel that the total annual provision of 
23,000 additional units was inadequate. On the basis that additional provision 
would be required to meet forecast population and household increases, the 
need for an annual provision exceeding 30,000 units was identified. The 2004 

2



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\8\AI00025896\SPAP0106LondonPlanAltsHsg2012050.doc 

Study was thus undertaken to identify potential capacity, and thereby to help 
provide an indication as to whether the additional provision required could be 
achieved in practice.  
   
The 2004 Study. 
Methodology 
2.1 As with methodologies for previous London Housing Capacity Studies, an 
approach that could be applied consistently to all Boroughs was developed.  
Boroughs were afforded the opportunity to comment on the new methodology, 
and improvements were secured. Whilst there are reservations over certain 
aspects of the methodology, it is acknowledged that accurately forecasting future 
levels of housing provision can never be an exact science. 
 
2.2 Much of the site information for the 2004 Study has been recorded on a 
computerised mapping system developed specifically for the 2004 Study. This is 
set up as a dedicated web site to which Borough officers had access for a 
prescribed period. Harrow acted as one of the pilot boroughs in the development 
of this system. Many of the different components of housing provision identified 
in previous studies have been included in the 2004 Study, including large sites, 
small sites, non self-contained accommodation, and vacancies. However, a far 
wider range of detailed information on individual sites was included in this study 
to enable an assessment of individual site potential and delivery to be 
undertaken.  
 
2.3 Large sites - The list of large sites for potential development prepared by 
the Greater London Authority (GLA) was scrutinised by officers.  This significantly 
reduced the number of sites entered by Harrow officers onto the database to be 
likely to be brought forward for development.  This included a small number of 
additional sites identified by Harrow officers. A meeting was subsequently held 
with GLA officers to discuss the individual sites.  Provisionally a capacity of 2,324 
units for large sites was identified for the ten-year period 2007-2016, equating to 
annual provision of 232 units.    
 
2.4 Small sites 
Estimates of this component were based on past trends on net housing 
completions, using information from the London Development Monitoring System 
and Housing Provision Survey information. In addition an ‘uplift’ component was 
identified, and borough officers were invited to complete a questionnaire on 
policy factors that might impact on potential capacity.  GLA officers included an 
uplift of 25%, although at a meeting to discuss the overall study, Harrow officers 
expressed the view that the uplift was not justified because the policies in the 
recently adopted HUDP were in general conformity with the London Plan.  A 
capacity of 1,276 units for small sites was identified for the ten-year period 2007-
2016, equating to annual provision of 128 units.  
   
 
 
2.5 Non self-contained accommodation 
Non self-contained capacity comes from a variety of sources, ranging from rooms 
or bedsits in houses, to new purpose built accommodation such as nurses or 
student accommodation.  The potential capacity from this source, as in previous 

3



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\8\AI00025896\SPAP0106LondonPlanAltsHsg2012050.doc 

studies, has been derived from extrapolation of previous performance. For 
Harrow, the average annual provision for the period 1997-2003 was 15 units.  
This has been translated into a forecast capacity of 146 additional units in the 
ten-year period 2007-2016, or 15 units per annum. 
 
2.6 Vacancies 
Estimating the contribution from this source of housing capacity (along with non 
self-contained capacity) had been a challenging exercise in previous Housing 
Capacity Studies. Unfortunately, addressing this element has again proved 
problematic in the 2004 study, to the extent that the GLA fundamentally changed 
the basis for defining vacant potential during the process (to a proportion of 
Council Tax identified vacant homes). There are continuing concerns about this 
element of housing, particularly given that eleven boroughs do not have any 
figures identified for this component.  For Harrow, a figure of 257 units was 
identified for the ten-year period 2007-2016, equating to annual provision of 26 
units. 
 
2.7 Summary of capacity 
Table 18 in the 2004 Study sets out the individual borough capacity figures for 
the individual components discussed above.  Harrow’s contribution is identified 
as being 4,002 additional units in the ten-year period 2007/8 – 2016/7, as 
follows:- 
- Large sites 2,324  
- Small sites 1,276 
- Non self-contained    146 
- Vacancies    257 

       TOTAL                  4,002 
 
2.8 Process of developing the final potential capacity figures. 
Following the submission of extensive and detailed site information, and a 
meeting between GLA and Harrow officers, GLA officers then undertook a 
scenario-testing phase on large site information. This phase did not result in 
changes to Harrow’s figures.   
 
The Draft London Plan Alterations 
 
2.9 Translation of potential capacity into targets 
The translation of any capacity study information into firm housing targets must 
be accompanied by some qualification. There will always be issues relating to 
whether all identified sites can be delivered, especially as a result of financial 
considerations.  Conversely, even if some sites identified in the Study are not 
brought forward for development, it is important to realise that a considerable 
number of sites, not hitherto identified, will come forward for development over 
the period 2007-2016. 
 
2.10 West London Sub-Region and Harrow targets 
Revised Policy 3A.1 in the Alterations re-affirms that policies in boroughs 
development plans should seek to achieve and exceed the targets identified.  
Table 3.1 includes a target for Harrow of 4000 additional homes in the period 
2007/8-2016/7. This target is part of the West Sub-Region figure of 38,400, which 
in turn contributes to the London total of 310,900. 

4



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\8\AI00025896\SPAP0106LondonPlanAltsHsg2012050.doc 

 
2.11 New paragraph 3.14b to Policy 3A.2 states that ‘boroughs will be required 
to demonstrate a housing output trajectory for achieving the annual average over 
the 10 year plan period’. The Annual Monitoring Report considered by the Panel 
at its meeting on 1st December 2005 included a housing trajectory which 
indicated that, on the basis of known planning permissions and identified 
potential, suggests that the target figure for Harrow would appear to be 
attainable. Any new development coming forward in the period on hitherto 
unidentified sites would need to be added to identified capacity. 
   
2.12 Delivering each component of the target. 
As with previous housing targets, there has been an implicit assumption that, 
should boroughs fail to meet their overall housing target, under-performance in 
any element would need to be compensated for by additional delivery under 
other components. Whilst this may be theoretically possible, achieving policy 
objectives may preclude undertaking such action. Indeed, artificially trying to 
increase one particular component might mitigate against achieving housing or 
sustainability objectives.  It is important to note that any targets included in the 
London Plan are to be subject to a 5 year review. 
  
 
2.13 Other possible implications for Harrow 
If the revised ten-year figure for Harrow of 4,000 additional homes in the period 
2007/8 to 2016/17 and the annual monitoring target of 400 per annum is 
accepted by the Panel overseeing Examination in Public, one of the implications 
by default would then be that the target for affordable provision would 
correspondingly increase from the current 165 units per annum to 200 units per 
annum (i.e. 50% of the overall target).  In practice it has been difficult to achieve 
even the latter. 
 
2.14 Update 
Since the draft Alterations were published, the Government on December 5th 
2005 published the revised PPS3 Housing consultation document, the Planning-
gain Supplement: a consultation document, the Government’s response to the 
Barker review and the ODPM’s plans in respect of making affordable housing 
more affordable. Consideration will be given to what impact the se proposals, if 
implemented would be likely to have on housing delivery in Harrow, including 
affordable housing. 
 
2.15 Conclusions 
Although there are reservations about assumptions made on certain aspects of 
the methodology used in the 2004 Study and its application, it is acknowledged 
that accurately forecasting future levels of housing provision can never be an 
exact science. On the basis of available information in the Housing Capacity 
Study, together with the housing trajectory undertaken as part of the Annual 
Monitoring Statement, it is suggested that the target identified for Harrow is 
achievable. Clearly this also assumes that there will not be any significant 
downturn in the economy that would inhibit housing development. Monitoring of 
levels of development taking place under each component of supply should 
quickly identify if any additional provision above the identified level, (or shortfall) 
is occurring. This will inform the next 5 year review.  

5



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\8\AI00025896\SPAP0106LondonPlanAltsHsg2012050.doc 

In accepting that the target would appear to be achievable, the Council is mindful 
that, following consideration of all the Boroughs’ responses adjustments, 
including reductions in some individual Borough targets may be agreed by the 
Mayor. Based on experience with previous studies and pursuant targets, this has 
resulted in the need to seek additional provision from some boroughs to ensure 
that the overall target is still met. The Council therefore wishes to clearly state 
that it would not accept any proposal which would result in any target in excess 
of 4000 units being sought.  
 
2.16 Options considered 
The preparation of a separate Council response has been pursued, although 
consideration of a joint West London response was considered, but deemed to 
be unrealistic to achieve. 
  
2.17 Consultation 
None. 
 
2.18 Financial Implications 
Costs are contained within the approved Departmental budget. 

 
2.19 Legal Implications 
The Council is, by virtue of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, a statutory 
consultee in the process of the alteration or replacement of the spatial 
development strategy (the London Plan).  The outcome of the Government’s 
recent consultation documents on the revised Planning Policy Statement No. 3 
Housing and the new Planning-gain Supplement are still awaited.   
 
2.20 Equalities Impact 
The Draft London Plan Alterations, by seeking to secure delivery of housing 
targets, promotes equality of opportunity, housing choice, and social inclusion. 
 
2.21 Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
Any design constraints on housing sites relating to crime would have been 
included in the 2004 London Housing Capacity Study, which informed the 
London Plan Alterations. 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/Background Documents 
 
Background Documents: Draft Alterations to the London Plan – Housing 
Provision Targets, Waste and Minerals – public consultation (July 2005, and 
October 2005). 
Revised PPS3: Housing consultation document (5th December 2005) 
The Planning-gain Supplement: -consultation document (5th December 2005) 
The Government’s response to the Barker review (5th December 2005) 
The ODPM’s plans in respect of making affordable housing more affordable (5th 
December 2005). 
 
 

6



 
 
Meeting:   
 

Strategic Planning Advisory Panel 

Date: 
 

Wednesday 4th January 2006 

Subject: 
 

Draft London Plan Alterations – Planning for 
Waste; Planning for Minerals – Public 
Consultation 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Group Manager-Planning and Development 

Contact Officer: 
 

Dennis Varcoe – Group Planner 

Portfolio Holder:  
 

Planning, Development and Housing 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Status: 
 

Public 

 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
The Panel is requested to recommend to Cabinet that the specific issues for 
Harrow contained within the covering report, together with the joint response 
prepared on behalf of the West London boroughs (attached as Appendix 1), be 
forwarded to the Mayor in reply to the Draft London Plan Alterations – Planning 
for Waste; Planning for Minerals – Public Consultation. 
 
Reason for report 
The Mayor has prepared draft Alterations to London Plan policies on Planning for 
Waste and Planning for Minerals.  The draft Alterations are the subject of a 3-
month public consultation, which started on 17th October. The policies and 
associated targets, which are eventually included in the London Plan, will provide 
the strategic guidance for the development of policies in the Core Strategy of the 
Local Development Framework. The Council would wish to respond at this stage.  
In addition, the boroughs within the West London Waste Authority (WLWA), who 
have agreed in principle to prepare a joint Waste Development Plan Document 
(DPD), have prepared a joint response to the Mayor’s consultation.  (This 
response, however, was not prepared through WLWA). 
 
 

Agenda Item 6
Pages 7 to 26

7



Benefits 
 
The opportunity for the Council to comment will enable the Mayor the opportunity 
to feed these into the Examination In Public to be held on the draft Alterations. 
Targets determined through this process will be statutory, and the Council will 
need to consider these in the preparation of the Local Development Framework. 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
Costs of preparing this response are within the approved Departmental budget. 
 
Risks 
 
Failure to comment would expose the Council to implications that it was entirely 
in agreement to the methodology for determining borough allocations of waste, 
and all other aspects of the draft London Plan Alterations in relation to waste and 
minerals.  It would also undermine the joint working which is also essential to 
development of a joint Waste DPD.  
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
Consideration would need to be given to any further action needing to be taken, 
including if this involved representations that would need to be pursued at 
the Examination In Public into the Draft London Plan Alterations.  
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 When the Mayor published the London Plan in February 2004, he also indicated that further 
research would be undertaken on sites for waste recycling and waste treatment, with a view to 
bringing forward updated waste planning policies. These have now been published. 
 
Context in the draft Alterations – the Mayor views the challenge of managing London’s waste as 
immense, and that although London re-cycles half its waste, it is the second worst performing 
English region for recycling municipal waste. The Mayor also takes the view that dependence 
on using landfill sites is not a sustainable solution (and in future will attract financial penalties).  
London must deal with its own waste here, in London.  The Mayor considers that London must 
move progressively towards high rates of recycling and recovery.  The adequacy of London’s 
existing waste management and disposal facilities has been evaluated. 
 
Policies in the draft Alterations 
Minor additions have been made to the current policies 4A.1 – 4A.2 in the London Plan, and the 
supporting justification. The supporting text to policy 4A.3 (criteria for selecting sites for waste 
management and disposal) has been supplemented by new paragraphs 4.10a – 4.10d which 
set out the requirements of PPS10 (paragraph 4.10a); show the different waste stream totals to 
2020 in respect of improving self sufficiency in waste to be managed in London and waste to be 
exported from London.  Para 4.10d refers to a new Annex 10 which present municipal and 
commercial/industrial waste projections at borough level for key milestones through to 2020. 
The projections (in thousand tonnes per annum) for Harrow are:- 
 2010 2013 2015 2020 
Municipal 137 145 151 166 
Commercial/Industrial  146 156 164 182 
Six new waste policies have been added, covering the following issues:- 

8



Policy 1 – Existing provision-capacity, intensification, re-use and protection 
Policy 2 – Additional land requirement for recycling and waste treatment facilities 
Policy 3 – Numbers and types of recycling and waste treatment facilities 
Policy 4 – Broad locations suitable for recycling and waste treatment facilities 
Policy 5 – Construction and demolition waste 
Policy 6 – Hazardous waste. 
 
The development of a Harrow response has been informed by work undertaken by the joint 
West London waste (land use) planners’ group (West London boroughs’ joint response at 
Appendix 1), and the submission of the Association of London Cleansing Officers (ALCO) 
(Appendix 2).  Accordingly, it is suggested that the Harrow response purely focuses on the main 
areas of concern.  
 
1.  Harrow Response 
Context 
The Council collects municipal waste in the borough, which accounts for approximately 25% of 
the total waste arising (the rest comprising commercial and industrial; construction and 
demolition; and hazardous waste).  The removal and disposal of this waste is undertaken by 
WestWaste (WLWA), which is developing a joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy within 
it’s constituent boroughs.  This strategy should be adopted by April 2006.  The consideration of 
planning applications for waste processing facilities put forward by WLWA or its partners will be 
a matter for the relevant Borough local planning authority in which the proposal is located to 
determine.   This Council would use the Harrow Unitary Development Plan (HUDP) and the 
London Plan in assessing proposals, whilst the draft London Plan Alterations would also be a 
material consideration. 
 
Particular concerns issues for Harrow 
There are three general concerns:- 
a). As a fundamental issue, it is not clear what is meant by self-sufficiency for waste 
management in London, and clarification is needed. 
b).  The Mayor is not clear about the number of sites likely to be required. In reality, the 
numbers and types of sites required may not be as high as is indicated. This would have 
fundamental implications on the search for sites, and the resultant landtake required. 
c).  The Mayor effectively does not countenance incineration as being an acceptable 
technology, even for treatment of residual waste.  Clearly any sustainability appraisal would 
have to include evaluation of this option. 
 
2.  The joint response on behalf of WLWA  
 The suggested response to the draft Alterations is set out in detail as Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
3.  The comments of the Association of London Cleansing Officers (ALCO) 
The ALCO response to the draft Alterations is set out in detail as Appendix 2 to the report, for 
information. 
 
2.2 Options considered 
The preparation of a separate Council response has been pursued, together with a joint West 
London response. The comments of the Association of London Cleansing Officers (ALCO) have 
valuably informed this process. 

 
2.3 Consultation 
Undertaken with other West London boroughs. 
 

9



2.4 Financial Implications 
Costs are contained within the approved Departmental budget. 

 
2.5 Legal Implications 

 
The Council is, by virtue of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, a statutory consultee in the 
process of the alteration or replacement of the spatial development strategy (the London Plan). 
 
The Council’s response to the draft joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy will be reported 
to the WLWA board in January/February when all the responses will be considered. The final 
version of the strategy will be subsequently circulated to all the constituent authorities for 
approval.  Once approved by WLWA and the six constituent authorities, the strategy will be 
submitted to the Mayor for London and DEFRA for final approval. 
 
2.6 Equalities Impact 
The Draft London Plan Alterations, by providing strategic guidelines on waste facility types, 
numbers and suggested broad locations promotes equality of opportunity to access local 
facilities. 
 
2.7 Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
Any design constraints on proposed waste management sites relating to crime will be 
addressed at either the pre-application stage or in the production of development briefs. 
 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/Background Documents 
Background Documents:  
Background Documents: Draft Alterations to the London Plan – Housing Provision Targets, 
Waste and Minerals – public consultation (July 2005, and October 2005). 
 
 

10



APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT ALTERATIONS TO THE LONDON PLAN POLICIES ON 
WASTE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JOINT RESPONSE FROM WEST LONDON BOROUGHS OF 
BRENT, EALING, HARROW, HILLINGDON, HOUSLOW AND 
RICHMOND. 

11



DRAFT ALTERATIONS TO THE LONDON PLAN POLICIES ON WASTE 
JOINT RESPONSE FROM WEST LONDON BOROUGHS 
 
1. The Draft Alterations to London Plan were published for public consultation in October 

2005 and include six new waste policies.  The following comments represent a response 
from the 6 West London Boroughs (Brent, Ealing, Harrow, Hounslow, Hillingdon and 
Richmond) who are proposing to work jointly on the production of a joint Waste 
Development Plan Document. (More borough-specific comments are also being 
submitted by individual Boroughs). Whilst the Draft Alterations have been informed by a 
strategic London-wide assessment of the adequacy of existing sites to met the 85% 
target for London self-sufficiency by 2020, this response has been informed by further 
research undertaken for the West London boroughs on commercial/industrial waste and 
site availability. 

2. Policies 4A.2 and 4A.3 – General comment - Table 4A.2 and 4A.3 effectively show the 
same info, only they represent the opposite extremes of this information.  Suggest 
deleting Table 4A.3.   

 
3. Policy 4A.3 – Criteria for the Selection of Sites for Waste Management and 

Disposal 
 

The following addition has been included to this policy –‘ The Mayor will work with the 
South East England and East of England regional authorities to co-ordinate 
strategic waste management across the three regions’. Whilst this addition is 
supported, appropriate acknowledgement should also be given to the necessity for 
boroughs to similarly engage with local authorities outside the capital.  The following 
addition is therefore suggested –  ‘London Boroughs should work with appropriate 
local authorities adjoining or close to London in developing their joint Waste 
development plan documents.’   

  
4. New Waste Policy 1: Existing provision- capacity, intensification, re-use and 

protection 
 Boroughs should protect existing waste sites and facilitate the maximum use of 

existing waste sites, particularly waste transfer facilities and existing landfill sites.  
If for any reason an existing waste management site is lost to non-waste use, an 
additional compensatory site provision will be required that normally meets at 
least the maximum throughput that the site could have achieved. 
 
This policy will be particularly important in this sub-region, and West London boroughs 
should support it and ensure it is implemented at the local level.  The GLA Waste Sites 
Investigation estimated there to be a shortfall in non-transfer capacity in the West London 
Sub-Region of over four million tonnes by 2020.  This means that existing waste sites in 
West London are a precious resource that should be safeguarded to avoid the capacity 
gap increasing further still.   

5. Furthermore, West London has a large number of waste transfer facilities in comparison 
to the other London sub-regions.  As the sub-region becomes increasingly self-sufficient, 
there is likely to be less of a requirement for transferring waste to landfill sites outside of 
London, which potentially frees up this existing resource for a change of operation to 
non-transfer processes e.g. recycling, composting.  Up to half (45.4ha) of the additional 
provision required for West London (as defined by London Plan sub-regional boundaries) 
might be provided through change of use of transfer stations. Safeguarding and making 
the most of existing waste facilities, including transfer stations, should be a priority in 

12



developing policies for West London to meet future capacity needs, assuming that 
Boroughs consider that such sites are suitable for continued use. It should, however, be 
acknowledged that there may be exceptional situations where it is not possible to provide 
the required compensatory site provision. 

7. It might be helpful for a general comment to be included on the approach to maintaining 
existing sites in the Green Belt (see also general comment (paragraph 28 below) on 
Green Belt/MOL). 

  
8. It is self-evident also, that the more existing sites can be protected, there will be less of a 

requirement to secure sites through the planning system for the construction of new 
facilities, which is likely to be challenging and take time. 

9. New Waste Policy 2: Additional land requirement for recycling and waste treatment 
facilities 
The overall additional requirements for waste management sites managing 
municipal and commercial and industrial waste (over and above the re-
use/intensification of existing sites) in London to 2020 is forecast to be 244 
hectares (16.2 hectares per annum, 2005-2020). 

At the strategic level, sufficient potential capacity has been identified as capable of 
implementation in local and strategic employment locations to meet the sub-
regional requirement. 

In order to ensure sufficient land capacity to meet the indicative sub-regional 
provision in the period 2005-2020 shown in Table 4A.4, London boroughs in their 
development plan documents should: 

•  Identify enough addition land capacity to contribute sufficiently and 
appropriately to the achievement of sub-regional provision.  

•  Collaborate at the sub-regional level in order to ensure that each borough 
allocation is sufficient to meet cumulatively the sub-regional apportionment.              

•  With the Mayor, keeping the indicative sub-regional apportionments under 
review and monitor progress towards their achievement. 

 For the West London Sub-Region the indicative provision for additional land is 53.6ha or 
3.6ha per annum.  This includes a re-allocated amount from Central London.  Details of 
this re-allocation are set out in table 4A.4.  Further explanation would be useful in the 
alterations regarding the re-apportionment of Central London's waste.  It is still unclear 
why the South Sub Region did not get any of this re-allocation. 

 
10. The Draft Alterations refer to sub-regional boundaries defined by the London Plan, which 

for West London includes the boroughs of Brent, Harrow, Ealing, Hillingdon, Hounslow 
and Hammersmith and Fulham.  In practice, the joint Waste Development Plan 
Document will cover a slightly different geographical area, which is based on the West 
London Waste Authority area, and includes Richmond but excludes Hammersmith and 
Fulham.  

11. It will be important for West London Boroughs to discuss with both the GLA and 
neighbouring authorities and sub-regions how sub-regional apportionments will be met, 
whilst avoiding undue delays in delivering increased capacity for waste management.  
Planning Policy Statement 10 states that planning authorities should provide a framework 
in which communities take more responsibility for their own waste.  Developing a future 

13



planning strategy for West London that reflects this principle may be more relevant than 
the imposition of administrative boundaries, which can sometimes appear artificial.  It will 
be necessary, however, for West London to manage a proportion of central London’s 
waste, due to a lack of suitable and available land in the Central Sub Region. 

12. Work carried out on behalf of the West London Boroughs suggest that allocating an 
additional 53.6 ha within the sub-region by 2020 is not wholly unrealistic.  However, 
achieving a figure of 3.6ha additional capacity per annum from this year is likely to be 
challenging, and a flexible approach is likely to be needed to allow a phased delivery of 
new land, whilst ensuring targets, particularly in relation to municipal waste, are met.  
Factors such as land values and competing land use e.g. housing, employment, land 
ownership constraints and public perception are likely to reduce the potential area of 
opportunity in West London considerably.  The significance of each of the planning 
constraints affecting sites will need to be considered in more depth before any additional 
waste allocations can be made in a DPD.  

13. Table 4A.4 sets out indicative sub-regional provision of additional land requirement for 
strategic recycling and waste treatment facilities.  Paragraph 4.10i sets out assumptions 
made in respect of the allocation of sites/land for potential waste use within the overall 
assessment of industrial land demand, and the need for other land not also required for 
housing use (see London Housing Capacity Study, July 2005), to be identified by West 
London boroughs. This of course assumes that waste facilities included within industrial 
land demand can acceptably be accommodated within available industrial/employment 
areas. 

14. Paragraph 4.10j then adds that at a strategic level, sufficient potential capacity has been 
identified to suggest that the sub-regional apportionment in Table 4A.4 can be met. 
Notwithstanding this, in view of the greater environmental constraints usually associated 
with locating waste management facilities outside industrial locations, the West London 
boroughs have reservations about the relative amount of additional provision expected in 
such locations.  Consequently, it may be necessary to increase the amount of land for 
waste management facilities included within industrial land demand, whilst 
acknowledging the possible knock-on effects on housing capacity.  

15. Clarification is sought from the GLA as to how the alteration relates to the sub regional 
areas and how this is reflected in the apportionment is given. Figures relating to the 
additional land requirement for recycling and waste treatment facilities, sub-regional 
distribution of facilitates and waste projections for municipal and commercial industrial 
should relate to the West London waste authority sub region and not the London Plan 
sub-regional development framework boundaries.  

 

16. The need for co-ordinated action to address negative public perceptions and raise 
awareness of the need to manage waste in a more sustainable way would be greatly 
assisted through London-wide initiatives through the GLA, Boroughs, and other partners 
as well as with residents at a local level.  Of equal importance will be a need to engage 
effectively with the waste management industry, particularly in realising the full potential 
for change of use of transfer stations.  

17. Amendments to the wording of the policy - The first two paragraphs of the policy should 
be deleted and placed in the supporting formation – it is contextual information, not 
policy.  Consideration should be given to boroughs providing sufficient land capacity to 
meet the borough waste projections set out in Annex 10, as opposed to the indicative 
sub-regional provision shown in Table 4A.4.     it would helpful to include reference to the 
number and extent of existing waste management sites in the reasoned justification. 

14



  
18. New Waste Policy 3: Numbers and types of recycling and waste treatment facilities 

 Boroughs in their development plan documents should identify a range of waste 
management facilities to manage a capacity of 13.5 mt municipal and commercial/ 
industrial waste, to be provided 2005-2020 in accordance with the locational 
criteria set out in Policies 4A2 and 4A3. 

 
The mix of facility types set out in the Draft Alterations is based on recycling facilities, 
which if well planned and designed will be suited to industrial locations, and potentially a 
wider range of locations through more sensitive design.  Energy from Waste has not 
been included within the mix of technologies.  Although this type of facility may have 
negative impacts such as the visual intrusion of a chimney stack and the effect of 
emissions on air quality, the land take requirement is likely to be lower. 

19. Para 4.10k states that London requires between 151-699 additional strategic facilities to 
deliver the 13.5 mt additional capacity required.  In practice, the numbers of facilities to 
be provided will be determined by the type of planning strategy West London boroughs 
wish to implement, including the extent to which larger strategic facilities are 
concentrated in industrial areas.  The policy provides a good degree of flexibility to 
determine a mix of sizes of facility.  Size and type of facility will also be highly dependent 
on what the waste management industry perceives to be cost effective and deliverable. 
In cost effectiveness terms, however, it would appear to be likely that the industry would 
usually prefer larger (strategic) facilities, rather than smaller, local facilities. 

 
20. Para 4.10k – A comment should be added at the end of the paragraph to acknowledge 

the true situation in London, whereby for some boroughs neither the option to provide a 
large number of small facilities (i.e. the sustainability ideal) nor the provision of a smaller 
number of large scale facilities, simply does not exist. 

  
21. West London Boroughs support the inclusion of a new criterion in Policy 4A.2 for the re-

use of surplus waste transfer sites for other waste uses, given the extent of the waste 
transfer resource in the sub-region.   

22. New Waste Policy 4: Broad locations suitable for recycling and waste treatment 
facilities 
Boroughs in their development plan documents should identify adequate 
provision for the scale of the waste use identified. The broad locations for these 
facilities are: 

•  Strategic Employment Locations (Preferred Industrial Locations and Industrial 
Business Parks-see Map4A.1 and Table 4A.7); 

•  Local Employment Areas; and 

•  Existing Waste Management Sites. 

 The Draft Alterations highlight eight areas in West London within which recycling and 
waste facilities could be located (see extract from Table 4A.7 below). The draft 
Alterations have referred to the Great Western Road PIL in Ealing.  This is incorrectly 
named.  It should be renamed the Great Western Industrial Park.  Should the reference 
to Brent/Barnet Staples Corner PIL in the table not be amended to indicate that it is in the 
North sub-region?.   

15



Table 4A.7 (extract) - Suggested strategic employment locations within which 
recycling and waste treatment facilities could be located (Source GLA) 
Sub-
Region 

Borough Broad Location/location type 

West Brent/Barnet Staples Corner PIL 

West Brent Wembley & Neasden PIL 

West Brent/Ealing/Hammersmith 
& Fulham 

Park Royal IBP/PIL 

West Ealing Northolt, Greenford, Perivale PIL 
(parts) 

West Ealing Great Western Road PIL (part) 

West Hillingdon Hayes Industrial Area PIL 

West Hillingdon North Uxbridge Industrial Estate 
IBP 

 PIL = Preferred Industrial Location IBP = Industrial Business Park 

 
23. New waste policy 4 indicates the broad locations suitable for recycling and waste 

treatment facilities.  These include Strategic Employment Locations, which comprise 
Preferred Industrial Business Parks and Industrial Business Parks.  It is generally 
understood that Industrial Business Parks are designed for businesses requiring a high 
quality environment.  Would waste facilities be suitable in such areas? Presumably this 
would depend on the nature and compatibility of the waste facility proposed.  Similarly 
there could be conflict with Local Employment Areas.   

 
24. Many of the potential waste sites identified in research undertaken for the West London 

boroughs fall within one of the Strategic Employment Locations listed above.  Whilst 
these sites are likely to be the primary locations for waste sites within West London, the 
West London boroughs suggest that the Alterations are more explicit about the degree of 
flexibility for seeking opportunities outside Strategic and Local Employment Sites and 
existing waste facilities.   

25. The degree to which West London Boroughs pursue this will depend on the type of waste 
planning strategy that is considered most appropriate for the sub-region as whole.  Map 
3.4 also illustrates that large areas of West London appear to have little or no opportunity 
for siting new waste management facilities based on the sources of sites investigated.  
Areas such as the London Boroughs of Harrow and Richmond and north Hillingdon will 
therefore be highly reliant on waste management facilities on large industrial estates 
such as Hayes and Park Royal.  This may be a less sustainable planning strategy in 
terms of factors such as volumes of traffic and emissions, than one, which promotes a 
waste management infrastructure which is more integrated with local communities.   

26. West London boroughs will need to consider the distribution of potential sites across 
West London which takes into account the siting criteria found in Policies 4A.2 and 4A.3 
of the London Plan.  Of particular relevance will be the criterion ‘proximity to source’, 
suggesting a need to locate facilities near to the businesses and residential areas.  This 
may require more flexibility in relation to Green Belt policy in particular.  In this respect, 
paragraph 3 of PPS 10 states that: 

16



 ‘Regional planning bodies and all planning authorities should, to the extent appropriate to 
their responsibilities, prepare and deliver planning strategies that: protect green belts but 
recognise the particular locational needs of some types of waste management facilities 
when defining detailed green belt boundaries and, in determining planning applications, 
that these locational needs, together with the wider environmental and economic benefits 
of sustainable waste management, are material considerations that should be given 
significant weight in determining whether proposals should be given planning 
permission.’ 

27. PPS 10’s assertion above, and existing London Plan Policy for waste facilities to be 
located near to the source of the waste arising, mean that a flexible yet cautious 
approach will need to be taken to siting of new waste facilities in areas of Green Belt.  
This is particularly relevant when Green Belt sites already accommodate compatible land 
uses including existing waste facilities. 

28. Just as it is agreed that it would be helpful if additional guidance/advice was provided in 
respect of existing sites, which are located in the Green Belt, similar guidance should be 
provided in respect of sites located in Metropolitan Open Land ((MOL).   

29. New Waste Policy 5: Construction and demolition waste 
 The Mayor will and boroughs should support new construction and demolition 

waste management facilities in London by encouraging recycling at existing sites, 
using mineral extraction sites for recycling and ensuring that major development 
sites are required to recycle by using mobile facilities on site wherever practicable. 

 The Mayor, the Environment Agency and other regional partners will work together 
to minimise construction and demolition waste and associated environmental 
impacts.  Development Plan Documents should require developers to produce site 
waste management plans to arrange for efficient materials and waste handling. 

Construction and Demolition waste facilities are not considered in the Draft Alterations’ 
capacity forecasts because London already recycles around 90% of this waste stream.  
West London boroughs support this policy and will seek to ensure it is reflected in the 
development of a Joint Waste Development Plan Document.  Whilst there are particular 
opportunities to pursue this policy in relation to minerals extraction sites and existing 
recycling facilities in the sub-region, it remains the responsibility of individual boroughs in 
the sub-region to decide the appropriate location of these. 

New Waste Policy 6: Hazardous waste 
 The Mayor will work in partnership with the Boroughs, the Environment Agency 

and industry to provide and maintain direction on the need for hazardous waste 
management capacity. 

 Development Plan Documents should: 

•  Make provision for hazardous waste treatment plants to achieve, at regional 
level, the necessary waste management requirements. 

•  Identify suitable sites for the storage, treatment and re-processing certain 
hazardous waste streams. 

•  Identify sites for the temporary storage, treatment and remediation of 
contaminated soils and demolition waste during major developments. 

19. No comments. 

17



20. Additional general comments. 

a) The draft Alterations now refer to the Mayor working with the two bordering regional 
authorities to co-ordinate strategic waste management across the three regions (Policy 
4A.3). However, they do not contain any significant acknowledgement to the implications 
of the nature, volume and movement of waste coming into the region. This also applies 
to future projections. 

b) The importance of the need for many existing transfer stations to become recycling 
and waste treatment facilities is acknowledged.  It appears, however, that insignificant 
thought has yet been given to the transitional waste-handling arrangements that will need 
to be in place whilst such sites are converted, adapted or redeveloped.    

18



 
APPENDIX 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT ALTERATIONS TO THE LONDON PLAN POLICIES ON 
WASTE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMENTS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF LONDON CLEANSING 
OFFICERS (ALCO) 

 

19



 Po
lic

y 
4A

.1
 

Th
e 

po
lic

y 
se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 8

5%
 re

gi
on

al
 s

el
f-s

uf
fic

ie
nc

y 
by

 2
02

0.
  

C
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
as

 to
 w

ha
t i

s 
m

ea
nt

 b
y 

se
lf-

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 fo

r w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

Lo
nd

on
 is

 n
ee

de
d.

 D
oe

s 
se

lf-
su

ffi
ci

en
cy

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

ex
po

rt 
of

 - 
Se

pa
ra

te
d 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 p

ro
ce

ss
or

s?
 

M
ix

ed
 re

cy
cl

ab
le

s 
fo

r s
or

tin
g/

 re
pr

oc
es

si
ng

? 
 

O
rg

an
ic

 w
as

te
 fo

r c
om

po
st

in
g/

an
ae

ro
bi

c 
di

ge
st

io
n?

 
M

BT
 fl

oc
k/

R
D

F 
fo

r e
ne

rg
y 

re
co

ve
ry

? 
R

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 fo
r e

ne
rg

y 
re

co
ve

ry
? 

Th
e 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 w
as

te
 in

 L
on

do
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

bu
t l

an
d 

in
 L

on
do

n 
is

 b
ot

h 
lim

ite
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e.
 R

ep
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r s

om
e 

w
as

te
st

re
am

s 
(i.

e.
 p

ap
er

, g
la

ss
 a

nd
 c

an
s)

 is
 w

el
l e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 th

e 
U

K 
an

d 
it 

se
em

s 
un

lik
el

y 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 to

 L
on

do
n 

- b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

la
nd

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

hi
gh

 
la

nd
 c

os
ts

.  
Th

e 
po

lic
y 

al
so

 n
ee

ds
 to

 re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

is
 a

s 
va

lid
 a

s 
re

gi
on

al
 s

el
f-s

uf
fic

ie
nc

y.
 It

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
se

ns
ib

le
 if

 
an

 o
ut

er
 L

on
do

n 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

er
e 

to
 b

e 
pr

ev
en

te
d 

fro
m

 u
si

ng
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

th
at

 w
as

 lo
ca

te
d 

ju
st

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
rd

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 c

ou
nt

y.
 

Th
e 

po
lic

y 
al

so
 n

ee
ds

 to
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 p

os
si

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 w

as
te

 w
ill 

be
 im

po
rte

d 
in

to
 L

on
do

n 
fo

r p
ro

ce
ss

in
g.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f t
hi

s 
oc

cu
rri

ng
 a

nd
, a

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 L
an

df
ill 

D
ire

ct
iv

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s,

 w
as

te
 w

ill 
in

ev
ita

bl
y 

m
ov

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

bo
un

da
ry

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 it
s 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
 in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

. 
Bo

ro
ug

hs
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 la

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 M
ay

or
’s

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

, W
as

te
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
0,

 th
e 

La
nd

fil
l D

ire
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r E
U

 d
ire

ct
iv

es
 o

n 
w

as
te

. I
f t

he
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
an

d 
so

m
e 

or
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
ex

po
rts

 w
er

e 
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
, t

he
 la

nd
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
dr

af
t a

lte
ra

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t. 
 

Th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

fo
r o

th
er

 fo
rm

s 
of

 e
ne

rg
y 

re
co

ve
ry

 s
uc

h 
as

 n
ew

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 a

dv
an

ce
d 

co
nv

er
si

on
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 o

ve
r 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l i

nc
in

er
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 is

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 “C

ha
ng

es
 to

 W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t D
ec

is
io

n 
M

ak
in

g 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 in
 W

as
te

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

0”
 –

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
by

 D
EF

R
A 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
05

. 
M

ax
im

is
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
is

 fu
lly

 s
up

po
rte

d 
bu

t a
ny

 d
ec

is
io

n 
on

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
sh

ou
ld

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 a

 th
or

ou
gh

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

. A
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 s
et

 o
ut

, t
he

 M
ay

or
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

ex
cl

ud
e 

in
ci

ne
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

ou
t r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
, d

el
iv

er
ab

ilit
y,

 c
os

ts
 o

r c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
 

Po
lic

y 
4A

.2
 

Pr
ov

id
ed

 s
el

f-s
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

is
 c

ar
ef

ul
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 P
ol

ic
y 

4A
.1

, P
ol

ic
y 

A4
.2

 a
ns

w
er

s 
m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 ra

is
ed

 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 s
el

f -
su

ffi
ci

en
cy

, t
he

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

an
d 

im
po

rt 
an

d 
ex

po
rt 

of
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

su
pp

or
te

d.
  

Po
lic

y 
4A

.3
 

Th
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
cr

ite
ria

 fo
r i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
si

te
s 

in
 b

or
ou

gh
s’

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

n 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
re

 s
up

po
rte

d.
 

20



Pa
ra

 4
.5

 
Th

e 
Al

te
ra

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
20

04
/5

 fi
gu

re
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

 th
at

 is
 re

cy
cl

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ill 

al
lo

w
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t t

o 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

th
at

 h
av

e 
oc

cu
rre

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 fe

w
 y

ea
rs

.  
O

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

Bo
ro

ug
hs

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

  F
iv

e 
Bo

ro
ug

hs
 a

nd
 o

ne
 d

is
po

sa
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 
th

ei
r 2

00
5/

06
 ta

rg
et

s 
a 

ye
ar

 e
ar

ly
 in

 2
00

4/
05

 a
nd

 th
e 

pi
ct

ur
e 

ha
s 

fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 2
00

5/
6.

  O
f t

he
 1

8 
au

th
or

iti
es

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
 

sh
or

t-l
is

te
d 

fo
r B

ea
co

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r “

W
as

te
 &

 R
ec

yc
lin

g”
 fo

r 2
00

6 
th

re
e 

ar
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
s.

 
Ta

bl
e 

4A
.1

 
Si

m
ila

rly
, t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 u
se

 u
pd

at
ed

 fi
gu

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

ke
n.

  
Pa

ra
 4

.6
 

Th
e 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g,
 in

di
ca

te
d,

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 b

es
t 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 W

hi
ls

t i
t m

ay
 b

e 
de

si
ra

bl
e 

to
 s

et
 h

ig
h 

ta
rg

et
s,

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 5

0%
 a

nd
 6

0%
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
vo

id
ed

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r m

ea
su

re
s 

(h
in

te
d 

at
 in

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t) 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
. T

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
at

em
en

t, 
in

 P
ol

ic
y 

4A
.1

, o
f 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
30

%
 b

y 
20

10
 a

nd
 3

3%
 b

y 
20

15
 is

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
.  

Ac
hi

ev
in

g 
hi

gh
er

 le
ve

ls
 w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ub

lic
 a

tti
tu

de
 a

nd
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e.
 T

he
 d

iff
ic

ul
ty

 o
f a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
is

 c
ha

ng
e 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
un

de
re

st
im

at
ed

. 
Pa

ra
 4

.7
 

M
ax

im
is

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

is
 fu

lly
 s

up
po

rte
d 

. 
Th

e 
M

ay
or

’s
 p

re
fe

re
nc

e 
fo

r o
th

er
 fo

rm
s 

of
 e

ne
rg

y 
re

co
ve

ry
 s

uc
h 

as
 n

ew
 a

nd
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
co

nv
er

si
on

 te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 o
ve

r 
co

nv
en

tio
na

l i
nc

in
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 it

 is
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 “C
ha

ng
es

 to
 W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

in
g 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
 in

 W
as

te
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
0”

 –
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 D

EF
R

A 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

05
. 

An
y 

de
ci

si
on

 o
n 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
sh

ou
ld

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 a

 th
or

ou
gh

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

. A
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 
se

t o
ut

, t
he

 M
ay

or
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
ex

cl
ud

e 
in

ci
ne

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
ou

t r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

, 
de

liv
er

ab
ilit

y,
 c

os
ts

 o
r c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t. 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
do

 n
ot

 s
ho

w
 w

hy
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
co

nv
er

si
on

 te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 c

on
ve

nt
io

na
l i

nc
in

er
at

io
n 

w
he

n 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 re

si
du

al
 w

as
te

 
Pa

ra
 4

.8
 

Se
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 in

 4
.7

 a
bo

ve
. 

Th
is

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 e

xp
lic

itl
y 

ex
cl

ud
es

 in
ci

ne
ra

tio
n 

as
 a

 w
as

te
 re

co
ve

ry
 o

pt
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 c

on
tra

ve
ne

 b
ot

h 
D

EF
R

A 
gu

id
an

ce
 

an
d 

th
e 

M
ay

or
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 th
at

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
pt

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 B
PE

O
  (

or
 it

s 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

). 
 

21



Pa
ra

 4
.9

 
Se

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 in
 4

.7
 a

nd
 4

.8
 a

bo
ve

. 
Bo

th
 n

at
io

na
l w

as
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

(W
as

te
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
0)

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 e

nv
is

ag
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill 

in
ev

ita
bl

y 
le

ad
 to

 c
ur

re
nt

 in
ci

ne
ra

to
r c

ap
ac

ity
 b

ec
om

in
g 

re
or

ie
nt

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 

no
n-

re
cy

cl
ab

le
 re

si
du

al
 w

as
te

.  
H

ow
ev

er
 th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t l
ea

d 
to

 th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f w

as
te

 b
ei

ng
 tr

an
sp

or
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 L
on

do
n 

to
 fe

ed
 

ex
is

tin
g 

in
ci

ne
ra

to
rs

. N
on

-re
cy

cl
ab

le
 re

si
du

al
 w

as
te

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 tr

ea
te

d,
 a

s 
fa

r a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

, i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
Pr

ox
im

ity
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
an

d 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 s

el
f-s

uf
fic

ie
nc

y.
 

Th
e 

M
ay

or
 d

oe
s 

no
t e

xp
la

in
 w

hy
 m

as
s 

bu
rn

 in
ci

ne
ra

tio
n 

(i.
e.

 E
fW

) w
ou

ld
 c

ro
w

d 
ou

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

or
 w

hy
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 d

o 
so

. P
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

at
 w

as
te

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
, i

n 
th

ei
r w

as
te

 s
tra

te
gi

es
, t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

as
te

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
, r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 w

ill 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

of
 h

ow
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 
re

si
du

al
 w

as
te

 a
ris

es
. R

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
fo

r t
he

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
nn

ag
e 

of
 re

si
du

al
 w

as
te

. T
he

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 s
ho

ul
d 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
a 

fu
ll 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f a
ll 

th
e 

op
tio

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 D
EF

R
A 

gu
id

an
ce

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

  
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

lte
ra

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

th
at

 s
om

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

nc
in

er
at

or
 c

ap
ac

ity
 m

ig
ht

 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 tr

ea
t r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 in
 p

ar
ts

 o
f L

on
do

n.
  

It 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

he
lp

fu
l i

f t
he

 M
ay

or
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

fo
r “

ot
he

r n
ew

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l a
nd

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

tre
at

m
en

t b
ef

or
e 

ne
w

 m
as

s 
bu

rn
 c

ap
ac

ity
” c

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
fu

lly
 e

xp
la

in
ed

. 
Ta

bl
e 

4A
2 

an
d 

Ta
bl

e 
4A

3 
As

 a
bo

ve
, c

la
rif

ic
at

io
n 

is
 s

ou
gh

t a
s 

to
 w

ha
t i

s 
m

ea
nt

 b
y 

se
lf-

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 fo

r w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

Lo
nd

on
. D

oe
s 

th
is

 in
cl

ud
e 

ex
po

rt 
of

 - 
Se

pa
ra

te
d 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 p

ro
ce

ss
or

s?
 

M
ix

ed
 re

cy
cl

ab
le

s 
fo

r s
or

tin
g/

 re
pr

oc
es

si
ng

? 
 

O
rg

an
ic

 w
as

te
 fo

r c
om

po
st

in
g/

an
ae

ro
bi

c 
di

ge
st

io
n?

 
M

BT
 fl

oc
k/

R
D

F 
fo

r e
ne

rg
y 

re
co

ve
ry

? 
R

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 fo
r e

ne
rg

y 
re

co
ve

ry
? 

Th
e 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 w
as

te
 in

 L
on

do
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

bu
t l

an
d 

in
 L

on
do

n 
is

 b
ot

h 
lim

ite
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e.
 R

ep
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r s

om
e 

w
as

te
 s

tre
am

s 
(i.

e.
 p

ap
er

, g
la

ss
 a

nd
 c

an
s)

 is
 w

el
l e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 th

e 
U

K 
an

d 
it 

se
em

s 
un

lik
el

y 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 to

 L
on

do
n 

- b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

la
nd

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

hi
gh

 
la

nd
 c

os
ts

.  
If 

so
m

e 
or

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

ex
po

rts
 w

er
e 

vi
ew

ed
 a

s 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

, t
he

 la
nd

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

dr
af

t a
lte

ra
tio

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 c
ha

ng
ed

. 
Th

e 
M

ay
or

 a
ls

o 
ne

ed
s 

to
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 p

os
si

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 w

as
te

 w
ill 

be
 im

po
rte

d 
in

to
 L

on
do

n 
fo

r p
ro

ce
ss

in
g.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f t
hi

s 
oc

cu
rri

ng
 a

nd
 a

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 L
an

df
ill 

D
ire

ct
iv

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

w
as

te
 w

ill 
in

ev
ita

bl
y 

m
ov

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

bo
un

da
ry

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 it
s 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
 

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0c
 

 
It 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ef
ul

 if
 th

e 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 g

ro
up

in
gs

 o
f w

as
te

 p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

 w
er

e 
al

ig
ne

d 
m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
gr

ou
pi

ng
s 

fo
r w

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

 T
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

is
-m

at
ch

 is
 c

on
fu

si
ng

 

22



N
ew

 W
as

te
 

Po
lic

y 
1 

Su
pp

or
te

d 
in

 p
rin

ci
pl

e.
  

H
ow

ev
er

 m
ax

im
is

in
g 

us
e 

of
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

75
%

 li
ce

nc
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 s
ite

s 
do

 n
ot

 b
re

ac
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t l
ic

en
ce

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

M
ak

in
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

cl
ea

rly
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t m

ad
e 

cl
ea

r 
to

 a
vo

id
 th

is
 s

lo
w

in
g 

do
w

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f n

ew
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f a

re
as

 w
he

re
 w

as
te

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 
lo

ca
te

d.
  

D
ef

in
in

g 
al

l s
ite

s 
in

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l r

eg
io

n 
as

 "k
ey

" w
hi

ls
t s

en
si

bl
e 

in
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

se
ns

ib
le

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

  T
he

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f 
si

te
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t l

ic
en

si
ng

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, w
ith

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
no

t r
eq

ui
rin

g 
ex

em
pt

io
ns

 fr
om

 W
M

L 
no

t 
ne

ed
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

w
ay

. 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
tra

ns
fe

r c
ap

ac
ity

 in
to

 tr
ea

tm
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

 u
nd

er
w

rit
es

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 s

ho
rtf

al
l. 

W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

w
ill 

ha
pp

en
 to

 a
n 

ex
te

nt
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ur

su
ed

 in
 p

ol
ic

y 
te

rm
s 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 c
ap

ac
ity

 w
ill 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
be

 s
tra

ig
ht

 li
ne

 a
s 

is
 

as
su

m
ed

 in
 th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

re
po

rt.
 A

 tr
an

sf
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

sh
ip

pi
ng

 1
00

,0
00

 tp
a 

is
 n

ot
 g

oi
ng

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

sp
ac

e 
as

 a
 

py
ro

ly
si

s 
pl

an
t /

 R
D

F 
et

c.
 

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0e
 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
Lo

nd
on

-w
id

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 c

ar
e.

 A
s 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
cl

ea
r w

ha
t i

s 
m

ea
nt

 b
y 

re
gi

on
al

 s
el

f-s
uf

fic
ie

nc
y.

 T
o 

w
ha

t e
xt

en
t d

oe
s 

th
e 

ex
po

rt 
of

 w
as

te
 to

 re
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 p
la

nt
s 

m
ee

t t
hi

s 
ta

rg
et

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
to

 b
e 

cl
ea

rly
 

se
t o

ut
 a

s 
it 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ev
en

tu
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 L

on
do

n.
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

 c
om

pr
is

es
 a

pp
ro

x.
 2

5%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f w

as
te

 g
en

er
at

ed
 in

 L
on

do
n.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
te

 is
 to

 s
om

e 
ex

te
nt

 
di

re
ct

ly
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f w
as

te
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
in

 L
on

do
n.

 O
th

er
 w

as
te

s 
ar

e 
de

al
t w

ith
, a

lm
os

t e
xc

lu
si

ve
ly

, b
y 

th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
. 

M
ar

ke
t f

or
ce

s 
w

ill 
be

 a
 b

ig
 fa

ct
or

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f w

as
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

pl
an

ts
. T

hi
s 

w
ill 

in
ev

ita
bl

y 
m

ea
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ill 
be

 
pr

es
su

re
 to

 lo
ca

te
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
he

re
 la

nd
 is

 re
ad

ily
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

of
 lo

w
er

 c
os

t. 
(i.

e.
 o

ut
si

de
 L

on
do

n)
. 

N
ew

 W
as

te
 

Po
lic

y 
2 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

se
lf-

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 la

nd
-ta

ke
. 

A 
co

nf
us

in
g 

pi
ct

ur
e 

ab
ou

t s
ub

-re
gi

on
al

 s
el

f-s
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

ex
is

ts
. A

ll 
Bo

ro
ug

hs
 a

re
 ta

sk
ed

 to
 b

e 
as

 s
el

f s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 b

ut
 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 re

co
gn

iti
on

 th
at

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l r

eg
io

n 
ca

n 
ne

ve
r b

e 
se

lf 
su

ffi
ci

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 J

W
D

As
 m

ay
 ti

e 
up

 s
ho

rtf
al

ls
 fr

om
 c

en
tra

l S
R

 
bo

ro
ug

hs
. T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
te

s 
a 

ne
ed

 fo
r a

 ti
m

et
ab

le
 a

nd
 s

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
of

 s
ub

-re
gi

on
al

 s
ite

 s
pe

ci
fic

 w
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
na

l n
at

ur
e 

of
 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

Th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 s
ite

s 
th

at
 re

su
lts

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
SL

R
 re

po
rt 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
pp

ea
r t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

su
ffi

ci
en

t a
nd

 w
el

l s
pa

ce
d 

ne
tw

or
k.

 T
he

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 c
ho

se
n 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 d

oe
s 

no
t t

ak
e 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 a
 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
Th

is
, c

om
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l l
ev

el
 o

f i
na

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 th

e 
da

ta
 a

nd
 th

e 
po

or
 re

tu
rn

 o
f B

or
ou

gh
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

m
ea

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

of
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
is

 d
im

in
is

he
d.

 
G

oo
d 

po
lic

y 
re

qu
ire

s 
go

od
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

It 
is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 a

ny
 w

as
te

 fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 1
0 

kt
pa

 is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

ite
 in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
te

rm
s 

(n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

w
ou

ld
 s

ay
 s

o 
pe

rh
ap

s)
 a

nd
 s

o 
th

e 
50

 k
tp

a 
di

st
in

ct
io

n 
is

 p
er

ha
ps

 to
o 

hi
gh

 g
iv

en
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
no

w
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 a
nd

 th
e 

w
is

h 
to

 le
av

e 
op

en
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

of
 s

m
al

le
r f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

de
liv

er
in

g 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
. T

he
re

 re
m

ai
ns

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ilit

y 
th

at
 a

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l 

ar
ea

 c
ou

ld
 d

o 
lit

tle
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

ne
w

 s
ite

s,
 a

nd
 th

er
eb

y 
cl

ai
m

 a
 lo

w
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

su
b-

re
gi

on
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
po

ss
ib

ly
 e

ve
n 

al
lo

w
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
n 

"n
on

-k
ey

" f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

er
eb

y 
lo

w
er

in
g 

th
ei

r o
ve

ra
ll 

nu
m

be
r o

f w
as

te
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 ro

bu
st

 e
no

ug
h 

to
 e

lim
in

at
e 

th
is

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y.

 

23



Pa
ra

 4
.1

0g
 

Ta
bl

e 
4A

4 
Th

er
e 

is
 s

om
e 

co
nc

er
n 

at
 th

e 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 re

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 la

nd
, w

hi
ch

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 b

e 
st

ro
ng

ly
 b

ia
se

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
.  

It 
is

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ap
pe

ar
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a,
 b

ut
 th

is
 d

oe
s 

ra
is

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 

ab
ou

t a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
Pr

ox
im

ity
 P

rin
ci

pl
e 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rt 

im
pa

ct
s.

 
Se

e 
ab

ov
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f s
el

f-s
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

ba
la

nc
in

g 
th

is
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 p

rin
ci

pl
e.

 
N

ew
 W

as
te

 
Po

lic
y 

3 
Su

pp
or

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

 s
ee

 c
om

m
en

ts
 a

bo
ve

 o
n 

se
lf-

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 la

nd
-ta

ke
. 

Th
e 

m
ix

 o
f f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 s
om

e 
re

gi
on

al
ly

 e
ss

en
tia

l f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

lim
ite

d 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 in
 L

on
do

n.
  

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0h
 

Ta
bl

e 
4A

5 
Th

e 
om

is
si

on
 o

f a
ny

 d
at

a 
fo

r i
nc

in
er

at
io

n 
pl

an
ts

 in
 T

ab
le

 4
A5

 a
nd

 th
e 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
of

 in
ci

ne
ra

tio
n 

in
 P

ar
a 

4.
10

h 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 tr
ea

tm
en

t o
pt

io
ns

.  
Ta

bl
e 

3.
1,

 in
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

Lo
nd

on
-w

id
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s*

, g
iv

es
 a

 fu
lle

r p
ic

tu
re

 b
ot

h 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

ra
ng

e 
of

 c
ap

ac
iti

es
. I

.e
. 

   
M

BT
 –

 s
m

al
l (

60
,0

00
 to

nn
es

), 
la

rg
e 

(2
50

,0
00

) 
   

G
as

ifi
ca

tio
n 

– 
sm

al
l (

50
,0

00
), 

la
rg

e 
(2

40
,0

00
) 

   
Ef

W
 –

 s
m

al
l (

50
,0

00
), 

la
rg

e 
(4

00
,0

00
) 

Th
us

 a
t t

he
 lo

w
er

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 s

ca
le

, a
ny

 o
f t

he
se

 te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fo
r d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 re

si
du

al
 w

as
te

.  
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

lte
ra

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 s

ee
k 

to
 d

iff
er

en
tia

te
 b

et
w

ee
n 

di
ffe

re
nt

 re
co

ve
ry

 o
pt

io
ns

. D
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
w

hi
ch

 o
pt

io
n 

to
 u

se
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 D

EF
R

A 
cr

ite
ria

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 S

ee
 c

om
m

en
ts

 o
n 

Pa
ra

s.
 4

.7
 to

 4
.9

. 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 e
xc

lu
de

 le
gi

tim
at

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
en

 te
ch

ni
ca

l s
ol

ut
io

ns
. 

*R
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 S
ite

s 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

in
 L

on
do

n.
 M

ay
or

 o
f L

on
do

n 
, J

ul
y 

20
05

.  

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0l
 

 T
he

 P
ro

xi
m

ity
 P

rin
ci

pl
e 

is
 s

up
po

rte
d,

 a
s 

is
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 b
al

an
ce

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 s

m
al

le
r, 

lo
ca

l s
ite

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r l

an
d 

fo
r w

as
te

. L
oc

al
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 n
ee

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 lo

ca
l c

on
st

ra
in

ts
. 

N
ew

 W
as

te
 

Po
lic

y 
4 

Su
pp

or
te

d.
 

H
ow

ev
er

 th
er

e 
w

as
 s

om
e 

co
nc

er
n 

th
at

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
 L

on
do

n 
be

in
g 

as
ke

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 –

 b
ec

au
se

 th
ey

 c
on

ta
in

 m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
tra

te
gi

c 
lo

ca
tio

ns
.  

Pe
rh

ap
s 

th
es

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
by

 re
fe

re
nc

in
g 

ba
ck

 to
 P

ol
ic

y 
4A

.3
 a

nd
 c

rit
er

ia
 s

uc
h 

as
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

, 
sc

al
e,

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rt 

im
pa

ct
 

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0n
 

Ta
bl

e 
4A

6 
Se

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0h
 a

nd
 T

ab
le

 4
A5

 

N
ew

 W
as

te
 

Po
lic

y 
5 

Su
pp

or
te

d 

N
ew

 W
as

te
 

Po
lic

y 
6 

Th
e 

tre
at

m
en

t o
f h

az
ar

do
us

 w
as

te
 is

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 it
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r t

hi
s 

ty
pe

 o
f f

ac
ilit

y 
to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 

Lo
nd

on
. S

ui
ta

bl
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 s
er

ve
 s

ev
er

al
 re

gi
on

s.
  

W
hi

ls
t b

or
ou

gh
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

m
in

de
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

se
ek

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
su

ch
 s

ite
s,

 it
 m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
th

at
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 
lo

ca
te

 w
ith

in
 L

on
do

n.
 

  

24



  

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank


